
 

Page 1 of 52 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 23, 2019 

5:30 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes of January 9, 2019. 

Public Comments 

Old Business 

2. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District - Site Plan Review: 2119 College Street 
(DEFERRED)  

Location:  2119 College Street, 925 W. 22nd Street, & 1003 W. 22nd Street 
Applicant:  CV Commercial, LLC., Owner; Slingshot Architects, Architect 
Previous discussion:  November 28, 2018, December 12, 2018, January 9, 2019  
Recommendation: Recommend Approval  
P&Z Action: Item deferred until City Council considers proposed zoning code amendments for the 
College Hill Overlay Zoning District. 

New Business 

3. Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning – SE Corner of Union Road and West 12th Street 

Location:  SE Corner of Union Road and West 12th Street 
Applicant:  Brent Dahlstrom, Owner; NewAldaya Lifescapes, Fehr Graham Engineering  
Previous discussion:  None 
Recommendation: Review and continue discussion. 
P&Z Action: Provide direction and comments for the February 13 P&Z Meeting 

4. Greenhill Village Townhomes II Preliminary Plat 

Location:  5.3 acres southeast of the Greenhill Road and Hudson Road intersection 
Applicant:   Panther Farms LLC – owner; CGA Engineers – Civil Engineer 
Previous discussion:  None  
Recommendation:  Review and continue discussion.  
P&Z Action: Provide direction and comments for the February 13th P&Z meeting 

5. Greenhill Village Townhomes II Site Plan  

Location:  Lot 1 in the proposed Greenhill Village Townhomes II Subdivision 
Applicant:   Panther Farms LLC – owner; CGA Engineers – Civil Engineer 
Previous discussion:  None  
Recommendation:  Review and continue discussion.  
P&Z Action: Provide direction and comments for the February 13th P&Z meeting 

Commission Updates 

Adjournment 

1



 

Page 2 of 52 

Reminders: 

February 13th & 27th Planning and Zoning Commission Meetings 
February 4th & 18th City Council Meetings 

  

2



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 
January 9, 2019 

City Hall Council Chambers 
220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
MINUTES 

 
The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, January 9, 
2019 at 5:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. The 
following Commission members were present: Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Leeper, Saul and 
Wingert. Larson and Oberle were absent. Karen Howard, Community Services Manager and David 
Sturch, Planner III, were also present. Holst presided as acting chair due to Oberle’s absence.  
 
1.) Acting Chair Holst noted the Minutes from the December 12, 2018 regular meeting are 

presented. Mr. Hartley made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Ms. Adkins 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, 
Hartley, Holst, Leeper, Saul and Wingert), and 0 nays.  

 
2.) The first item of business was Zoning Code Text Amendments – Proposed changes to Section 

29-160, College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District to define and clarify standards for 
mixed-use buildings. Acting Chair Holst introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided 
background information. She explained that a public notice was published in the Waterloo 
Courier and it has been entered into public record. She went on to discuss the goals of the 
amendments. The primary goal is to clear up the ambiguous and confusing language in the 
College Hill Overlay District and establish clear and objective standards in the code to facilitate 
consistent review and approval of proposed development.  The changes are intended to 
further the existing Comprehensive Plan goals for the College Hill Neighborhood, including 
improvement of pedestrian access, spurring local development of more mixed-use storefronts 
with apartment dwellings above and to link the “Upper Hill” and the “Lower Hill” along College 
Street into a more cohesive, walkable area. She noted that there will likely be an upcoming 
study of public parking in College Hill, so the proposed zoning amendments may need to be 
adjusted after the parking study is completed. She also discussed the hidden costs of setting 
aside too much land for private off-street parking. As requested by the Commission after 
conflicting opinions about the interpretation of the zoning ordinance for several previous 
development requests, staff is recommending to delete ambiguous and confusing language in 
the code regarding principal and secondary uses, define mixed use buildings and establish 
parking standards for residential dwelling units within a mixed-use building. In addition, staff is 
recommending to establish building design standards for mixed-use buildings that address 
safe and prominent building entries, quality storefront design and standard for high quality 
building materials and building articulation to match what is required for multiple dwellings 
within the College Hill Overlay. There would also be some minor clean-up on the terms used 
for different types of dwellings to match Section 29-2, Definitions. Staff recommends approval 
of the proposed zoning code amendments. 

 
 Jerry Geisler, 4412 S. Hudson Road, stated that he did not get his paperwork in to the 

Commission in time to be a part of the record, but at the last meeting it was mentioned that a 
lot of the students come from middle income families and are looking for a cheaper place to 
live. He noted that in his experience the students want to have the maximum amount of 
tenants in a unit to keep costs down, but they also all have vehicles. He feels that parking 
requirements should be more than one vehicle per bedroom to accommodate the added 
tenants. 

 

3



 2 

 Mr. Sturch noted that there are letters that were submitted and given to the Commission after 
the packets were compiled. 

 
 Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane, feels there is a distinct difference between any 

preliminary parking studies in the downtown area, where the developments are more 
expensive and tenants have higher incomes and fewer vehicles, and the parking situation on 
the Hill. He mentioned a survey of landlords of college students that showed that 98% of the 
students own cars. The students will typically walk to class from their apartment, leaving their 
cars parked in the available spaces during the day. This does not allow much turnover for 
commercial/visitor parking. He stated his opinion that city parking is not there for residents of 
developers to capture and use for their purposes. Mr. Vajpeyi recited a quote from Maggie 
Miller, former director of government relations for University of Northern Iowa. “Every student I 
know that lives off campus owns a car. There’s really not a way to live in this city without a car. 
We’ve had a problem with Urban Flats.” He stated that the Urban Flats project was passed 
through with the agreement that the students were to buy a UNI parking pass, however there 
was no verification in place and there is only one lot where a 24 hour pass can be purchased. 
He feels a study needs to be done before another project like that is approved. 

 
 Kamyar Enshayan, 1703 Washington Street, board member of the College Hill Partnership, 

stated that a letter of support of the change was sent to the Commission. The Partnership’s 
goal is to encourage vitality, walkability and bike-ability on the Hill and they feel that the 
change is a reasonable step forward. 

  
 Dan Drendel, Slingshot Architecture, stated that he is in support of what staff is recommending 

and appreciates the Commission’s work to remove ambiguity from the code. He feels this is a 
good interim step until the parking study is completed.  

 
 Brian Sires, 1939 College Street, agreed with the majority of the comments made. He stated 

that College Hill will change over time and he encourages the Commission to create adequate 
parking for the future to accommodate those changes.  

 
 Ryan Kriener, 4487 Donald Drive, asked about an opportunity for using remote, off-site 

parking to serve the needs of residents and whether that would be added to the code. Ms. 
Howard stated that this is an option that could be considered with the larger parking study and 
future code amendments. 

 
 Becky Hawbaker, 2309 College Street, commented that the Hill is changing and bringing more 

variety. As a resident of the area, she feels that density should be built to create walkable 
neighborhoods. As new businesses are coming in, there is less of a need for students to drive. 

 
 Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve. Mr. Wingert seconded the motion.  
 
 Mr. Leeper understands the parking concerns but feels that the increased density and 

walkability is a good goal. 
 
 Ms. Giarusso stated that she feels that the parking study should include the University of 

Northern Iowa. She feels that there may be students who don’t drive often or at all and may be 
willing to park further from their residences as they walk to classes. 

 
 Ms. Saul feels that the study should be done before any changes are made.  
 
 Mr. Hartley likes the change and feels it provides a measured solution in the interim until 

completion of the study. 
 

4



 3 

 Mr. Holst supports the parking study for gathering information.  
 
 Ms. Adkins asked about the timeframe for the study. Howard responded that there has not 

been a specific timeline determined at this time.  
 
 The motion was approved with 4 ayes (Hartley, Holst, Leeper and Wingert), and 3 nays 

(Adkins, Giarusso and Saul). 
 
3.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay 

District Site Plan Review for 2119 College Street. Mr. Holst introduced the item and Mr. 
Wingert noted that he will not be abstaining from the vote as he has no conflict of interest in 
the matter. Mr. Sturch provided a brief summary of the project, including the number of units 
and proposed parking. He discussed the current code requirements with regard to parking 
stalls as well as proposed elevation from different perspectives. He displayed renderings of the 
proposed building materials and the building height in relation to existing buildings in the area. 
He discussed additional site plan review elements stating that all requirements are met. Staff 
recommends approval with conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical 
requirements, development and execution of a parking agreement for the project and 
adherence to any direction from the Commission.  

 
 Dan Drendel, Slingshot Architecture, feels that the project will provide the density called for in 

the Comprehensive Plan and work well with the constraints of the site.  
 
 Kamyar Enshayan, 1703 Washington Street, stated that the College Hill Partnership board 

unanimously supports the project. 
 
 Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane, feels that approving the project based on the 

assumption that the council will approve the code amendment is putting the train ahead of the 
engine. Once the project is completed, it’s too late to undo the work. He also commented on 
Mr. Wingert’s statement that he would not be recusing himself from voting, stating that it is 
important to avoid even the appearance of impropriety. 

 
Howard clarified that the proposed site plan should be considered on its own merits under the 
current code and should not be tied to code amendments that have not yet been approved. 
She noted that the Commission, at its discretion could vote on the matter under the current 
code or defer it to a future meeting.  

 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to defer action until the Council considers the zoning code 

amendments discussed previously. Ms. Giarusso seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins,Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Leeper, and Saul), and 1 
nay (Wingert). 

 
4.) As there were no further comments, Mr. Leeper made a motion to adjourn. Ms. Saul seconded 

the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, 
Holst, Leeper, Saul and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:43 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Howard       Joanne Goodrich  
Community Services Manager    Administrative Clerk 

5



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: January 17, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Land Use Map Amendment and Rezone property from A-1, Agricultural to 
R-P, Planned Residence District 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Brent Dahlstrom, Owner; NewAldaya Lifescapes, Fehr Graham Engineering 

LOCATION: 
 

42.35 acre parcel at the southeast corner of W. 12th Street and Union Road 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The petitioner has submitted a request to rezone 42.3 acres of land at the southeast corner of 
W. 12th Street and Union Road from A-1, Agricultural to R-P, Planned Residential. The rezoning 
will allow development of a NewAldaya Lifescapes campus that includes one and two unit 
dwellings and multi-unit dwellings for a 55 and over clientele. 
 
The R-P district is guided by a development concept plan that the applicant submitted as part of 
this request. The development concept shows the general location of the streets, buildings, 
building lines, common areas, future floodplain and the storm water management areas. It is 
important to show the location of the streets and their extensions in order to create connections 
to other nearby existing and future neighborhoods. All the streets identified in the concept plan, 
except for the private drive for the multi-unit building at the northwest corner of the property, will 
be dedicated to the public and constructed according to city specifications. This plan will serve 
as a guide for the development of the preliminary and final plat that will be submitted at a later 
date. 
 
The plan includes 69 one and two unit dwellings and two large multi-unit dwellings; one building 
with 40 to 50 units is located at the corner of W. 12th Street and Union Road and the second 
building with 20 to 25 units is located near the southwest corner of the site. It is proposed to 
establish 129 to 144 units on the 42 acres of land for a residential density of 3.07 to 3.42 units 
per acre. This is development plan can be considered a low density residential use.   
 

6



BACKGROUND 
This property has been zoned as agricultural since adoption of the Zoning Ordinance in 1970. 
The land is surrounded by residential zoning on the west (across Union Road), north (across W. 
12th Street) and northeast side of the property. The current owner is interested in selling this 
land to NewAldaya Lifescapes for a new 55 and over housing development. 
 
The rezoning of this property must be carefully considered by evaluating the characteristics of 
the land and surrounding properties. This staff report will outline a number of these elements in 
order to have a firm understanding of the future use of this property. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The purpose of the A-1, agricultural zoning district is to act as a “holding zone” for future 
development when municipal services (sanitary sewer, water, roads) are accessible to the site.  
When these services are available, the development of the land is threefold, beginning with the 
rezoning of the land, platting and construction. 
 
As previously mentioned, this 42-acre property is surrounded by residential development on the 
west, north and northeast. There is a single lot development to the south and the Robinson 
Dresser athletic complex to the east. This property is bisected with the western reach of the 
University branch of Dry Run Creek. A portion of the property is located in the 100-year 
floodplain which will need to be revised as part of the platting process. With the exception of the 
floodplain, there are no other sensitive areas within this rezoning plat. 
 
Zoning considerations normally involve evaluation of three main criteria: 
 

1) Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 
The Future Land Use Map identifies the property as greenways/floodplain. The 
greenways/floodplain category is identified in the Comprehensive Plan for traditional parks, 
recreational areas and environmentally sensitive areas to be possibly incorporated into the 
city’s trail system. These areas are also reserved for stormwater management. A 
drainageway flows through the middle of the site in a northwesterly to southeasterly 
direction. The floodplain boundary buffers this drainageway but only encompasses a 
portion of the entire land area, which is approximately 13 acres. There is a considerable 
portion of the property that is developable.  

 

 

Future Land Use Map with Categories 

7



The proposed concept development 
plan includes the preservation of the 
floodplain, creating open space, trails, 
sidewalks and stormwater management 
areas for the neighborhood. Trails and 
sidewalks are planned along W. 12th 
Street and Union Road and within the 
development. A city park is not planned 
for this property. There are other nearby 
parks surrounding this property including 
the Robinson Dresser Sports Complex, 
Pheasant Ridge Golf Course and 
Birdsall Park. Other than the location of 
the floodplain, there are no other 
sensitive features on this property. 
Currently, FEMA has submitted a 
preliminary set of floodplain maps to the city for review. This review process will take place 
over the next 18-20 months. The existing and future floodplain boundary must be located 
outside the building areas of the proposed dwellings. 
 
It seems appropriate to amend the future land use map to accommodate this development. 
The proposed amendment would maintain the location of the floodplain and change the 
“Greenway” designation to “Planned Development.”   

 
2) Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer service?  

Yes, sanitary sewer is readily available to the site. This sewer is located through the middle 
of the property within the aforementioned floodplain and drainageway. This sanitary sewer 
is located in the Cherrywood Interceptor Sewer District which includes a sewer tapping fee 
as part of the development. The sewer tapping fee is $294.63 per acre of development. 
This fee is paid by the developer at the time of final platting.   
 

3) Does the property have adequate roadway access?  
The property currently has access from W. 12th Street and Union Road. The development 
concept plan shows two public street connections onto Union Road and one public street 
connection onto W. 12th Street. The two street connections onto Union Road are 
approximately 449’ and 852’ feet, respectively, south of W. 12th Street. The southern street 
connection onto Union Road is directly across from Sonoma Drive. The W. 12th Street 
connection is approximately 750’ feet east of Union Road and it is directly across from 
Alexis Boulevard. The development concept plan also shows a street stub to the south and 
a street stub to the east. These street connections will be important for general traffic 
circulation and connections between neighborhoods and future neighborhoods. For 
example, while there may be no development planned for the existing large single family 
properties to the south, at some point in the future there may be a desire to further 
subdivide those lots. Without a street planned street connection to this area, future infill 
development would not be possible. Staff notes that during the preliminary platting of the 
subject property, care should be taken to locate these street connections so they can be 
extended in a logical manner to adjacent properties and avoid conflicting with existing 
development. For example, the street connection to the south should be located to avoid 
extending too close to the existing home to the south. Angling this future roadway to the 
east to potentially parallel the creek may be an appropriate option.   

8



A preliminary Developmental Procedures Agreement has been submitted for this rezoning 
request. The agreement describes the development details such as subdivision plats, 
description of proposed uses, maximum residential densities and agreement to submit all multi-
unit developments for further site plan review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City 
Council. The Development Agreement should be viewed as the narrative version of the graphic 
site plan. The agreement should also note that sanitary sewer and other utility connections will 
be extended to the site and that any sewer or water tapping fees will be paid at the time of 
platting and installation. The sewer service serving this area is subject to the Cherrywood 
Interceptor Sewer District tapping fee of $294.63 per acre which was established by the City 
Council several years ago. 
 
As part of the technical review of this proposal, Cedar Falls Utilities personnel, have no 
concerns with the proposed rezoning request. Water, electric, gas, and communication utilities 
are all available to this site from W. 12th Street and from Union Road per the service policy of 
each utility. There is a water connection fee of $55,833.14 for this property based on the street 
lineal footage of W. 12th Street and Union Road. This connection fee is part of the cost of the 
original water main installations on W. 12th Street and on Union Road. All utility services will be 
extended into this property as part of the platting process. 
 
A notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on January 17, 2019 regarding this 
rezoning request.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Gather any comments from the Planning and Zoning Commission and public then continue the 
discussion on this rezoning request and set the date for public hearing for the Land Use Map 
Amendment and the Rezoning at the next Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on 
February 13, 2019. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
1/23/19 

 

  

 

9



Robinson-Dresser
Sports

Complex

Pheasant
Ridge Golf

Course Walters
Ridge Golf

Course

Concord Cir

W Sunshine Ln

Beaver Rd

Sk
yli

ne
 D

r

Po
ss

um
 R

d

Wild Horse Dr

Co
lum

bin
eD

r

High St

CherrywoodDr

Sonoma Dr
Cobblestone Ct

Stratford Ct

Waterbury Dr

Rocky RidgeR d

Le
xin

gto
n D

r

Jakob CirBlai r R
idg

e Rd

Qu
ail

Ri d
ge

Rd

AlexisBlvd

Wellington Dr
Granite Ridge Rd

Frontier Rd

Pendleton Dr

Normandy Dr

Newland Dr

Prairie Rd

W 12th St

Bir
dsa

ll Park
Dr

W 12th St
Un

ion
 R

d

W 27th St

R-1

R-1

R-1

RP

C-2

R-4

RP

P

R-2

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
January 23, 2019

Rezoning request from A-1 to R-P
W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce
da

rH
eig

hts

Dr

Pra irie Pkwy

WRidgeway Ave

University Ave

Waterloo Rd

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vikin

gRd

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

CenterS t

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rse
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

Location
Map

10



12TH STREET
 U

N
IO

N
 R

O
AD

SONOMA DRIVE

ALEXIS BLVD

Ó 

ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL

OWNER'S LISTING MAP
FOR

REZONING REQUEST
"A-1" TO "R-P"

PART OF LOT 2 OF ROBINSON'S
MINOR PLAT OF PART OF THE

NW1/4 OF SECTION
15-T89N-R14W

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

11



12



 

 

 
 

R-P PLANNED RESIDENCE ZONING DISTRICT 
DEVELOPMENTAL PROCEDURES AGREEMENT 

 
This agreement is made and entered into this day   of     , 2019, by and 

between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called “City” and Newaldaya 

LIfescapes, hereinafter called “NewAldaya”, for the purpose of outlining procedures to 

be followed for the development of certain land located near Union Road and West 12th 

Street containing approximately 42.345 acres, being owned currently by Money Pit LLC 

and proposed for purchase by NewAldaya, which is now the subject of a rezoning 

proceeding with the City, said land legally described as follows:  

 
A PARCEL IN LOT 2 OF ROBINSON'S MINOR PLAT OF PART OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH 
P.M., BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 
  
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION; 
 
THENCE NORTH 89°49'32" EAST (ASSUMED BEARING), 75.00 FEET ALONG THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION TO THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF LOT 2 OF ROBINSON'S MINOR PLAT OF PART OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SAID SECTION; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 00°00'06" EAST, 33.00 FEET ALONG SAID WEST EXTENSION LINE 
TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING;  
 
THENCE NORTH 89°49'32" EAST, 795.34 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
LOT 2 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN SAID MINOR PLAT;  
 
THENCE SOUTH 00°09'12" EAST, 275.63 FEET;  
 
THENCE NORTH 89°48'38" EAST, 223.37 FEET; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 00°10'46" EAST, 307.88 FEET; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 35°48'01" EAST, 410.89 FEET; 
 
THENCE NORTH 89°49'48" EAST, 813.81 FEET; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 00°02'24" EAST, 898.69 FEET, ALL ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE 
OF SAID LOT 2; 
 
THENCE NORTH 50°48'28" WEST, 1,057.40 FEET; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 01°16'33" WEST, 145.20 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION AS 
SHOWN ON SAID MINOR PLAT; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 89°47'16" WEST, 1,252.41 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION AS 
SHOWN ON SAID MINOR PLAT TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 2;    
 
THENCE NORTH 00°00'06" WEST, 1,291.49 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;      
 

13



 

 

CONTAINING 42.345 ACRES, SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS OF RECORD.      
 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of NewAldaya to develop this land as an addition to the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa, amending part of the R-P, Planned Residence Zoning District;  
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City of Cedar Falls to ensure that said development  
proceeds in an orderly manner.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained, the 
City and NewAldaya agree as follows:  
 

1. The subject property will be developed in several phases of age 55+ dwelling 
units and associated infrastructure. Preliminarily, the phasing is contemplated as 
a first phase which will consist of infrastructure and single and two-family 
dwelling units on the southwest portion of the property. The second phase will 
consist of infrastructure, single and two-family dwelling units on the east side of 
the property. The third, fourth, and fifth phases will be single, two-family, 2-story 
(20 -25 unit) and a 3-story (42-48 unit) building. This phasing concept is 
preliminary and will be driven by demand. Final phasing will be reviewed with 
City of Cedar Falls prior to construction. 

 
2. The City agrees to allow a subdivision of this parcel for the purpose of creating a 

retirement community by NewAldaya. A preliminary plat and final plat in 
accordance with current City of Cedar Falls city code will be prepared for review 
by the City and approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City 
Council. 

 
3. NewAldaya agrees to construct any necessary public roads, including paving, 

drainage, and water and sewage improvements for this development.  
 
4. NewAldaya agrees to construct at minimum a 5’ wide public sidewalk on each 

side of any new public street in accordance with City subdivision and 
engineering regulations. NewAldaya further agrees to construct a 5’ wide public 
sidewalk along the south side of W. 12th Street and participate in the 
construction of the proposed 10’ recreational trail along Union Road. This 
recreational trail cost share includes paying for one-half of the width of the trail 
along the entire length of the property described above.  

 
5. NewAldaya agrees to follow the current floodplain management regulations of 

the City of Cedar Falls. The current floodplain boundary must be modified prior 
to the final platting of lots for development. This includes obtaining a LOMA 
(Letter of Map Amendment) from FEMA and a no-rise certification for the 
construction of the street crossing over the designated SFHA (Special Flood 
Hazard Area). 

 
6. The exterior of all proposed buildings will be individually approved by the 

Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council prior to any building 
construction. Single and Two-Family housing units are contemplated as pitched, 
shingled roof units with a mix of masonry and other conventional siding 
materials.  Multi-story buildings are contemplated as partial pitched and flat roof 

14



 

 

structures with a mix of masonry and other exterior façade elements to be 
determined.   

 
7. NewAldaya agrees to provide a landscaping plan in according with the R-P, 

Planned Residential Zoning District standards. These plans will be approved by 
the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council prior to any building 
construction.  

 
8. Signage on the buildings and grounds will be in accordance with the applicable 

zoning regulations at the time of development.  
 
9. The City agrees with the traffic impact analysis prepared for this development 

and submitted at the time of rezoning. 
 
10. NewAldaya agrees to dedicate 17 feet of land across the northern boundary 

along W. 12th Street for future roadway improvements  
 
11. Storm water runoff will be captured on-site and directed to new detention basins 

either directly or by an adequately sized storm sewer system. NewAldaya will 
maintain all necessary easements to comply with state and local code.  

 

12. The sewer service serving this area is subject to the Cherrywood Interceptor 
Sewer District tapping fee of $294.63 per acre which was established by the City 
of Cedar Falls on September 13, 1999, Ordinance #2276. 

 

13. As part of the cost of the original water main installations on W. 12th Street and 
Union Road, there is a water connection fee of $55,833.14 for this property. This 
connection fee is based on the street lineal footage along W. 12th Street and 
Union Road. 

 

14. The foregoing conditions shall be binding upon NewAldaya, its successors and 
assigns and shall apply to the above described real estate and shall run with the 
land. 

 
Newaldaya Lifescapes     City of Cedar Falls, Iowa  
 
 
By: ________________________   By: _________________________  
  

15



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner II 

  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: January 17, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Greenhill Village Townhomes II – Preliminary Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Greenhill Village Townhomes II Preliminary Plat 

PETITIONER: 
 

Panther Farms LLC – owner; CGA Engineers – Civil Engineer 

LOCATION: 
 

5.3 acres southeast of the Greenhill Road and Hudson Road intersection 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to subdivide a 5.3 acre parcel in the MU, Mixed Use Residential, 
zoning district with the intent to develop townhome buildings. The proposal consists of one 
developable lot, tracts for future streets and stormwater basins, and two outlots as placeholders 
for future development. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 1998 the 130 acres of the Greenhill Village property was rezoned to MU, Mixed Use 
Residential. This rezoning was accompanied by the creation of a Greenhill Village Master Plan 
that was to be used as a guide for the development in this area. Since that time there have been 
a number of amendments to the Greenhill 
Village Master Plan. The most recent 
amendment to the Master Plan was approved 
in April 2018.  This amendment to the Master 
Plan focused on the 5.3 acres southeast of 
the Greenhill Road and Hudson Road 
intersection; the area being considered in this 
request.  These 5.3 acres were originally 
designated for single-unit residential 
development with a density of 3.14 units an 
acre. The approved amendment allows for 
multi-unit, residential development at a 
density of approximately 7.7 units an acre. 

16



The concept plan that was approved with this update to the Greenhill Village Master Plan 
presented a development of townhomes, see image on previous page.  
 
ANALYSIS 
The property in question is located within the MU, Mixed Use Residential, zoning district. The 
intent of the MU district is to encourage a variety of housing types and neighborhood 
commercial land uses for the purpose of creating viable, self-supporting neighborhood 
districts. Therefore, MU districts permit a variety of uses ranging from neighborhood commercial 
to office to single-unit homes to condominiums. The approved Greenhill Village Master Plan, 
attached, arranges the various permitted uses and densities by area and provides a guide for 
needed street connections within the district. The Master Plan designates this site to be a 
multifamily development which will extend Loren Drive to the west creating an east-west 
connection to Norse Drive. The Master Plan also shows Addison Drive coming north to connect 
to the extension of Loren Drive. This connection will create another point of egress and ingress 
for the residential properties to the south.  The layout of the proposed Greenhill Village 
Townhomes II Preliminary Plat provides the street connections as described and is consistent 
with the approved Greenhill Village Master Plan. 
 
This Preliminary Plat proposes to 
create one buildable lot, Lot 1, 
outlined in red to the right. This lot 
will be 0.98 acres in size. The 
remainder of the site’s 5.3 acres will 
be platted as a tract for future street 
connections (Tract C), outlots for 
future development (Outlots A and 
Outlot B), and two tracts for detention 
basins (Tract A and Tract B). The 
detention basin in Tract B, outlined in 
blue in the image to the right, will be 
installed with the creation of Lot 1. 
Along with the installation of this 
detention basin, the land in Outlot B, 
outlined in green, will be graded to 
guide stormwater from Lot 1 to this 
detention basin. This improvement ensures that the water runoff from the new development that 
will occur on Lot 1 will be properly managed. This detention basin will be oversized to serve the 
future development that may occur in Outlot B. The second detention basin, Tract A, will be 
installed in the future once Outlot A and B are platted for development. A private alley is 
proposed coming south off of Lloyd Lane to provide access to Lot 1. This private alley 
connection meets city standards and allows more flexibility with the grading of the site as 
opposed to a connection coming from the south.  Public sidewalks will be installed on the west 
and north sides of Lot 1 as well as the east side of Tract B. Other public sidewalks will be 
installed in conjunction with the future extension of Loren Drive and Addison Drive once Outlot A 
and B are platted for development. Utilities are readily available to this site. The developer will 
coordinate with CFU for extending the utility services to the proposed development.   
 
Another Preliminary Plat and Final Plat will be required once the developer is ready to move 
forward with the development of Outlots 1 and 2.  
 

17



TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has reviewed the proposed 
plat. Technical comments are outlined below: 

1. The list of record owners of property within 200' needs to include the proprietors of 
"Greenhill Village Fourth Condominiums". 

2. Adjoining record title lines should be called out in the legal description (the deed that the 
water tower sits on and the deed to the unplatted land to the South of proposed Tract 
"B"). 

3. Add a public sidewalk on the east side of Tract "B". 
4. A note about wetlands should be shown. 
5. A utility easement needs to be shown of the North line of Lot 1   for the sanitary sewer. 
6. The 10' PUE (assuming public utility easement) needs to be wider to accommodate the 

depth of the sanitary sewer on the West sides of Lot 1 and Outlot "A". Extend to 20 feet. 
7. The boundary  line of the addition needs to be a heavier line weight than the interior lot 

lines 
8. On Sheet 2 of 2 remove “Lot 5 0.57 acres” language from the Plat   
9. Deed of Dedication – will be finalized with the Final Plat 
10. Submit final stormwater management report at time of construction plans. 

Basic platting documents have been submitted including plats and platting fee ($300). A drafted 
Deed of Dedication, Attorney’s Title Opinion, and Surveyor’s Certificate have all been submitted.  
 
The property is located outside of the designated floodplain. Notice to adjoining property owners 
for this preliminary plat was mailed on January 16, 2019. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed Greenhill Village Townhomes II Preliminary Plat is consistent with the 
development intent of this area and serves as an intermediate step in the development of this 
site. Staff recommends gathering any comments from the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
the public and then continuing the discussion of the proposed subdivision plat at the next 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on February 13, 2019. Approval will be subject to the 
resolution of the technical comments listed above. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
1/23/2019 

 
 
 

Vote 
2/13/2019 

 

 
 
Attachments: Greenhill Village Master Plan  
  Proposed Preliminary Plat 
  Drafted Deed of Dedication 
   

18



19



20



21



1 

 

DEED OF DEDICATION 

OF 

GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

 That Panther Builders, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, with its principal office 

in Cedar Falls, Iowa; being desirous of setting out and platting into lots and streets the land 

described in the attached Certificate of Survey by Travis R. StewartJeremy A. Harris, a 

Professional Engineer and Licensed Land Surveyor, dated _____ day of ________________, 

20182019, do by these presents designate and set apart the aforesaid premises as a subdivision of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa the same to be known as: 

 

GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

(“Development”) all of which is with the free consent and the desire of the undersigned and the 

undersigned do hereby designate and set apart for public use the street(s) as shown upon the 

attached plat. 

 

EASEMENTS 

 

 The undersigned do hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its 

successors and assigns, and to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the 

transmission and/or distribution of water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service 

or cable television, perpetual easements for the erection, laying building and maintenance of said 

services over, across, on and/or under the property as shown on the attached plat.  

 

RESTRICTIONS 

 

 Be it also known that the undersigned do hereby covenant and agree for themselves and 

their successors and assigns that each and all of the residential lots in Development be and the 

same are hereby made subject to the following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully 

and effectively to all intents and purposes as if the same were contained and set forth in each 

deed of conveyance or mortgage that the undersigned or their successors in interest may 

hereinafter make for any of said lots and that such restrictions shall run with the land and with 

each individual lot thereof for the length of time and in all particulars hereinafter stated, to-wit: 

 

 1.  Any building that shall be erected shall have a minimum setback from the front, 

side, and rear of the lot lines as indicated on attached Final Plat. All minimum setbacks will be 

required to meet or exceed M-U Mixed Use Zoning. 

 

 2.   Only buildings containing townhomes shall be constructed on Lots. 

 

22



2 

 

 3.   Tract “CA” to be deeded to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa for public street 

purposes.  That portion of Tract “A” south of Lot 5 and Tract “C” will not be required to be 

constructed until such time as Lot 5Outlots “A” and “B” are developed.  is developed, with 

theThe costs of construction on a future extension of Tract ”C” south of Tract “B” shall to be 

shared between Developer and the owner of the real estate to the south of Tract “BA”. 

 

 4.   Tracts “BA” & “CB” shall be used for water retention and shall be maintained by 

the Greenhill Village Townhomes II of Cedar Falls Owners Association.  The City of Cedar Falls 

and the Greenhill Village Townhomes II of Cedar Falls Owners Association shall have access to 

said detention ponds for maintenance as more particularly shown on the Final Plat. 

 

 5.   All private streets in Development shall be maintained by the Greenhill Village 

Townhomes II of Cedar Falls Owners Association. 

 

 6.   Any and all drainage easements will be required to follow the “Stormwater 

Management Plan” and no building structures, fence structures, landscaping structures, private 

gardens or any other possible obstruction can be built in and over said drainage easements. All 

lot owners and/or contractors working on said lots will be responsible to maintain said easements 

to be free and clear of any physical obstruction(s) thus allowing the conveyance of overland 

storm water runoff as intended per “Stormwater Management Plan” on record with the City of 

Cedar Falls Engineer's Office. 

 

 7.   The Owner and/or occupant of each Lot shall jointly and severally be responsible 

to keep in good order or to maintain the area between the curbline and the property line abutting 

their property including keeping said area free of holes, pitfalls, stumps of trees, fences, brick, 

stone, cement, stakes, posts or rods to which a metal, plastic or similar receptacle designed to 

hold newspapers are affixed, private irrigation or sprinkler systems, retaining walls, landscaping 

brick, block, stone, timber or other similar materials, or any other simulator obstruction.  All 

mailboxes shall be clustered or grouped for the units, and shall not be placed between the curb 

line and the property line abutting the lots.   

8.   All townhomes shall be subject to the Declaration of Submission of Property to 
Horizontal Property Regime for Greenhill Village Townhomes II Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 
County, Iowa to be filed within one (1) week of the filing of the Final Plat.    
 

9.   Every lot in Addition and the owner thereof shall be subject to all of the 

provisions of the Greenhill Village Master Plan currently on file with the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, at the time of construction and the lot, and all amendments thereto, including but not 

limited to the design guidelines contained therein. 

 

10. Lots 3 and 5 shall be granted cross easements over the other lot for access from each Lot 

to Tract A and that portion of future Loren Drive south of Lot 5 and Tract C. 

 

101. The undersigned and all persons and entities hereafter acquiring any right, title, or 

interest in any of the Lots in said Development shall be taken and held to have agreed and 

covenanted with the owners of all other Lots in this Development and with the respective 

successors and assigns of all of the rest of such other Lots to conform to and observe all of the 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

23



3 

 

foregoing covenants, restrictions, and stipulations as to the construction of building thereon, for a 

period of 21 years from the date of filing of said plat, and this deed of dedication for record. 

Within the period of 21 years and in accordance with Iowa Code § 614.24 and § 614.25 or their 

successor provisions, these covenants, restrictions, and stipulations may be extended for an 

additional period of 21 years upon compliance with § 614.24 and § 614.25 of the Code of Iowa. 

In the event an extension of the covenants, restrictions, and stipulations is not filed within the 

period of 21 years or successive 21-year periods, then the covenants, restrictions, and stipulations 

contained herein shall terminate at the end of the existing period of 21 years. 

 

1121.  Invalidation of any of these covenants by judgment, decree, or court order, shall in 

no way affect any of the other provisions of this dedication and such other provisions shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

 

1322.  If the parties hereto, or any of them, or their heirs or assigns shall violate or 

attempt to violate any of the covenants or restrictions here, it shall be lawful for any other person 

owning property in said addition to prosecute any proceedings at law or in equity against the 

person or persons violating or attempting to violate any such covenants or restrictions, and for 

the purpose of preventing such acts or recovering damages for such violations or both, and for 

costs and reasonable attorney fees as determined by the court. 

 

 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED IN PLAT 

 

1.  The public street(s) shown on the attached plat, will be brought to City grade and that 

the street will be thirty-one (31) feet, back of curb to back of curb, with approved hard surface 

pavement in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls, Standard Specifications unless otherwise 

specified as per approved construction plans.   

 

2.  Sanitary sewer, together with the necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all 

buildings in the plat will be provided. 

 

3.  That underground utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, shall be installed. 

 

4.  That city water will be provided to all buildings as required by the Cedar Falls 

Municipal utilities. 

 

5.  That municipal fire hydrant(s) will be provided as required by the Cedar Falls Public 

Safety Department. 

 

6.  That Storm sewer will be provided as specified by the City Engineer. 

 

7.  That handicap ramps will be provided as required by law.  

 

8.  All buildings erected on any lot in this Development shall be constructed in 

accordance with the building, plumbing and electrical codes of the City of Cedar Falls. 

 

24



4 

 

 9.  The Developer or its successors will install a 4-foot wide concrete sidewalk four 

inches thick across the entire frontage of any Lot, and Side of the Lot, on and corner Lots, at the 

time of construction upon said Lot. This shall include handicap ramps as provided by state law. 

Any Lots remaining vacant for five (5) years after the date of final approval of the plat, shall be 

improved with sidewalks as soon as the construction season permits. 

 

10.  That the work improvements called herein shall be in accordance with the 

specifications of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and performed under the supervision of the City 

Engineer.  In the event that the developer, Panther Farms, LLC, it grantees and assigns fail to 

complete said work and improvements called for within one (1) year from the date of the 

acceptance of said final plat by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the City may then make 

improvements and assess the costs of the same to the respective lots.  The undersigned, for 

themselves, their successors, grantees and assigns, waive all statutory requirements of notice of 

time and place of hearing and agree that the City may install said improvements and assess the 

total costs thereof against the respective lots. 

 

11.  That the City may perform said work, levy the cost thereof as assessments, and the 

undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall be a lien on the respective lots with the 

same force and effect as though all legal provisions pertaining to the levy of such special 

assessments have been observed, and further authorize the City Clerk to certify such assessments 

to the County Auditor as assessments to be paid in installments as provided by law. 

 

12. The Developer shall construct and install all required public improvements within the 

subdivision plat, to conform with approved construction plans which meet the specifications of  

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Such required public improvements shall meet the following  

requirements: 

 

A.  Shall be constructed and installed in a good and workmanlike manner; 

 

B.  Shall be free of defects in workmanship or materials; 

 

C.  Shall be free of any conditions that could result in structural or other failure of  

 said improvements; 

 

D.  Shall be constructed and installed in accordance with the design standards and  

 technical standards established for such public improvements by the City and by  

 Cedar Falls Utilities; 

 

E.  Shall be constructed and installed in strict compliance with the minimum  

 acceptable specifications for the construction of public improvements set forth in the  

 Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, including without limitation, Chapter 24,  

 Subdivisions, and as such specifications shall be recommended for approval by the 

City Engineer from time to time, and approved by the city council.   

 

 13.  The Developer’s construction plans are now on file in the Office of the City 

Engineer. 

 

25



5 

 

SIGNED and DATED this _______ day of _______________, 20182019 

 

      Panther Builders, LLC 

 

      ___________________________ 

      Brent Dahlstrom, Manager 

 

STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY: ss 

 

 On this ____day of ______________, 20182019, before me, the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Brent Dahlstrom, Manager of Panther 

Builders, LLC, to me known as the identical persons named in and who executed the foregoing 

instrument and acknowledged that they executed the same as their voluntary act and deed on 

behalf of Panther Builders, LLC. 

 

 

      ______________________________________ 

      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

26



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner II 

 DATE: January 17, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Greenhill Village Townhomes II – Site plan 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Greenhill Village Townhomes II Site Plan 

PETITIONER: 
 

Panther Farms LLC – owner; CGA Engineers – Civil Engineer 

LOCATION: 
 

Lot 1 in Greenhill Village Townhomes II, 0.98 acres southeast of the Lloyd 
Lane and Norse Drive intersection 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to build one (1) four-unit townhome building and one (1) five-unit 
townhome building on Lot 1 of the Greenhill Village Townhome II subdivision. This request will 
be subject to the approval of the Greenhill Village Townhomes II Preliminary and Final Plat.  
 
BACKGROUND 
In 1998 the 130 acres of the Greenhill Village property was rezoned to MU, Mixed Use 
Residential. This rezoning was accompanied by the creation of a Greenhill Village Master Plan 
that was to be used as a guide for the development in this area. Since that time there have been 
a number of amendments to the Greenhill Village Master Plan. The most recent amendment to 
the Master Plan was approved in April 2018.  
This amendment to the Master Plan focused on 
the 5.3 acres southeast of the Greenhill Road 
and Hudson Road intersection; the land now 
described as Greenhill Village Townhomes II. 
These 5.3 acres were originally designated for 
single-unit residential development with a 
density of 3.14 units an acre. The approved 
amendment allows for multi-unit, residential 
development at a density of approximately 7.7 
units an acre. The concept plan that was 
approved with this update to the Greenhill 
Village Master Plan presented a development 
of townhomes, see image to the right.  

27



ANALYSIS 
The property in question is located within the MU, Mixed Use Residential, zoning district. 
Development in an MU zoning district requires a detailed site plan review to ensure that the 
development site satisfies the standards of the comprehensive plan, recognizes principles of 
civic design, land use planning, landscape architecture, and building architectural design that 
are set out for the district. Attention to details such as parking, open green space, landscaping, 
signage, building design, and other similar factors help to ensure orderly development. The 
following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements: 
 
Use: The intent of the MU district is to encourage a 
variety of housing types and neighborhood 
commercial land uses for the purpose of creating 
viable, self-supporting neighborhood districts. 
Therefore, MU zoning permits a variety of uses 
ranging from neighborhood commercial to office to 
single-unit homes to condominiums. The approved 
Greenhill Village Master Plan, attached, arranges the 
various permitted uses and densities by area. The 
proposed Greenhill Village Townhomes II Site Plan 
proposes to build two townhome buildings that are 
consistent with the approved Greenhill Village Master 
Plan and concept plan; see the Background section 
of the report. The City‟s Future Land Use Map closely 
follows the Greenhill Village Master Plan. A standard 
planning practice is to create a gradual transition of 
development intensity from single family development 
to higher density residential to neighborhood-serving 
commercial and mixed-uses. The City‟s Future Land 
Use Map shows this area, outlined in red in the 
image to the right, as being developed as Medium 
Density Residential. The proposed Greenhill Village II 
Site Plan will serve as a transition in development 
intensity and is consistent with the City‟s Future Land 
Use Map. The proposed use of Townhomes is a 
permitted use in this area. 
 
Building Location: In the MU Zoning District a 30 foot 
minimum setback area consisting of open 
landscaped green space must be established around 
the district. In addition, principal structures must be 
setback at least 20 feet from any interior streets and 
other buildings. The boundaries of the Greenhill 
Village MU zoning district run along Lloyd Lane and 
Norse Drive. The proposed setbacks are enhanced 
over an excerpt of the submitted site plan in the 
image to the right. The locations of the two 
buildings meet or exceed the standards of the 
district. 
 
Parking: The parking requirement for townhomes in 

Low Density 

Residential 

Medium Density 

Residential 

Commercial 

& Mixed Use 

Park 

G
re

en
w

a
y

 

Excerpt of the Cedar Falls Future 

Land Use Map 

30‘   

20‘  

41‘   

 20‘  

 30‘   

Lloyd Lane 

 30‘   

28



Cedar Falls is two parking spaces per dwelling unit, plus one additional parking space for each 
bedroom in each dwelling unit in excess of two bedrooms. The applicant is proposing to build 
one (1) four-unit townhome building and one (1) five-unit townhome building. Each unit will have 
three bedrooms, see floor plan below. Per the city code the development will need to provide 
each townhome unit a minimum of three parking spaces. In addition to this general requirement, 
one stall is required for every five units in excess of five units for visitor parking. There are nine 
units being proposed in this site plan; no guest parking is required. The proposed development 
will provide each unit with a tuck under two stall garage located in the rear of the buildings. Each 
garage will have a 20 foot long by 20 foot wide driveway. The proposed layout provides four 
parking spaces per unit: two in each garage and two in front of each garage. These four stalls 
would provide the needed parking for the optional fourth bedroom shown in the lower level next 
to the garage. If this additional bedroom is added it will need to meet all building and safety 
standards. The location of the garages off of the back of the buildings creates a more 
pedestrian-oriented, residential character along the streets which is consistent with the intent of 
the district. Parking lot regulations and landscaping requirements are not applicable to this 
review. The parking requirement is met.   

 
Open Green Space/Landscaping: The MU District requires 
that open green space be provided at the rate of 10% of the 
total development site area excluding the required district 
setbacks. The development site is 0.98 acres or 42,689 
square feet. The proposed site plan offers 0.46 acres or 
20,038 square feet (47%) of open space. The minimum 
required open space area for this lot is 4,269 square feet. 
When deducting the district setbacks for this property 
(13,534 square feet) the open space provided for the site is 
6,504 square feet. The open green space requirement is 
met. In addition to the greenspace requirement the MU 
district has a landscaping requirement of 0.02 landscaping 
points per square foot of total development site area. For a 
42,689 square foot lot, 854 landscaping points are needed. 
The proposed landscaping plan, see image to the right, is 
proposing to provide 2,160 landscaping points. The 
proposed landscaped areas will be distributed throughout 

29



the development site. The MU District also requires 0.75 landscaping points for street trees per 
linear foot of public street frontage.  This development is required to provide 338 (415 feet x 
0.75) landscaping points worth of street trees. The applicant is proposing to provide five 2 inch 
overstory street trees which equates to 400 landscaping points. Additional landscaping will be 
required as future development occurs throughout the Greenhill Village Subdivision. Staff 
recommends that two of the existing overstory “site trees” be relocated to the east side 
of Tract B, detention basin, to meet the street tree requirements for that tract. The 
landscaping requirements are met.  
 
Building Height: The maximum building height allowed in this district is 35 feet or three stories, 
whichever is less. The two proposed buildings will be three stories with a height of 34 feet 11 ¼ 
inches. The building height requirement is met.  
 
Building Design: The MU District requires a design review of various elements to ensure 
architectural compatibility to surrounding structures within the MU District. Below are a set of 
images showing the character of neighboring buildings and developments within the MU District.  

 
1510 Athens Ct and 1517 Athens Ct (properties to the south) 

 

 
Greenhill Market and Greenhill Crossing (developments to the north)  

 
Greenhill Village Commercial 4th (development to the east) 

30



Proportion: The relationship between the width and height of the front elevations of 
adjacent buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building; the 
relationship of width to height of windows and doors of adjacent buildings shall be 
considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
 
As seen in the images on the previous page the MU District houses a variety of housing 
types and neighborhood commercial land uses. The property in question has single 
family residential development to the south and west (the land to the west is outside of 
the MU zoning district so an example of this housing stock is not included in this 
analysis). A water tower (outside of the MU zoning district), Greenhill Market 
(commercial), and Greenhill Crossing (multi-family development) are to the north. The 
Greenhill Village Commercial 4th (Multi-family development) is to the east. Two and three 
story buildings are typical for this area. Below are front and back elevations of the 
proposed five-unit building. Note that the proposed four-unit building has the same 
design, see attached for the complete set of elevations.  

 
Each proposed townhome will be 25 feet wide by 35 feet long. In total, the four-unit 
townhome building will be 100 feet long and the five-unit townhome building will be 125 
feet long. The proposed design breaks up a multiunit building so each townhome is easily 
distinguished from the adjacent townhome with each townhome proportioned consistent 
with that of a single family home.  Criterion met. 
 

31



Roof shape, pitch, and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, pitch, and 
direction of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. 
 
All neighboring residential developments have pitched roofs. The proposed two buildings 
incorporate the same roof shape, pitch, and direction. Criterion met. 
 
Pattern: Alternating solids and openings (wall to windows and doors) in the front facade 
and sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. This pattern of 
solids and openings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
 
The two proposed buildings have a distinct repeating pattern for each unit on both the 
back and front facades. Each entry is recessed from the front line of the main portion of 
the townhome units to add additional depth to the front façade. In the rear the second 
floor dormer overhangs the main portion of the house to also create depth in the façade. 
The proposed doors and windows on each side create visual interest and rhythm. 
Criterion met. 
 
Materials and texture: The similarity or compatibility of existing materials and textures on 
the exterior walls and roofs of buildings in the immediate area shall be considered in the 
construction or alteration of a building. A building or alteration shall be considered 
compatible if the materials and texture used are appropriate in the context of other 
buildings in the immediate area. 
 
To help distinguish between the townhome units a vertical board and batten siding will 
alternate with a horizontal lap board siding from unit to unit. This variation in design also 
helps to prevent monotony by visually breaking up the façade into distinct units. The 
siding is cement board, which is a more durable material than vinyl siding. A brick liner 
will be used in areas where the foundation is visible. The applicant is proposing to use a 
standing seam metal roof. The proposed materials are consistent with materials used 
within the district. Criterion met. 
 
Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and roofs of 
buildings in the area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
 
The proposed buildings will be covered with both vertical and horizontal, white siding, 
gray brick, and topped with a gray roof. The use of a neutral color is consistent with the 
area. To provide additional visual interest, along with the alternating siding, the applicant 
is showing each unit with its own unique door color. Criterion met. 
 
Architectural features: Architectural features, including but not limited to, cornices, 
entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, and fanlights, prevailing in the immediate area, 
shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. It is not intended that 
the details of existing buildings be duplicated precisely, but those features should be 
regarded as suggestive of the extent, nature, and scale of details that would be 
appropriate on new buildings or alterations. 
 
Each townhome unit of this building has a small porch and balcony. The roof line is 
broken up and the front walls are setback in places to create both visual horizontal and 
vertical breaks. The architectural elements of these two buildings can be found in the 

32



residential development to the south. Criterion met. 
 
Signage: No signage is currently proposed. The signage criterion is not applicable to this 
proposal.  
 
Access locations: A private alley 
is proposed coming south off of 
Lloyd Lane to provide access to 
the garages for the townhomes 
on Lot 1. A turnaround will be 
provided at a location where the 
private alley could continue east 
to serve potential future 
development. Public sidewalks 
are required along the north and 
west sides of Lot 1. Sidewalk 
connections are required along 
the public streets. Since there 
will be a Loren Drive constructed along the south side of the subject lot in the future, a public 
sidewalk will also be required along the south lot line, but this can be installed when this street is 
constructed in the future.  This future public sidewalk should be noted on the site plan prior to 
approval. Private sidewalk connections to the townhomes will also be provided as shown. 
Future public sidewalk connection should be indicated on the site plan. 
 
Stormwater: A detention basin to the east, part of the Greenhill Village Townhomes II 
development, will be utilized to control water runoff from this site. The neighboring Outlot will be 
graded to guide the stormwater from Lot 1 to the detention basin. This improvement ensures 
that the water runoff from the new development will be managed. This detention basin will be 
oversized so it has the capability to also serve future development. Criterion met. 
 
Other Site Elements: The developer intends to remove garbage and snow from the site with a 
private contractor. 
  
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has reviewed the proposed 
plat. Technical comments are outlined below: 

1. Enlarge all drawing plan views such that on an 11x17 sheet, they will scale properly. 
2. Increase width of PUE to 20‟ around N/S sanitary main and include northern sanitary 

manholes/main within a PUE. 
3. Add sidewalk along the eastern lot line of Tract B. 
4. Add note for future sidewalk along the south side of Lot 1 
5. On sheet C.300 remove “(By OTHERS)”  
6. Revise and update sheet C.100 accordingly with any Preliminary Plat revisions 
7. Submit final stormwater management report at time of construction plans.  
8. On Sheet No.C.200: 

a. Update the height details of the building so to be consistent with the elevations 
(should be 34‟ 11 1/4 „‟). 

b. Site triangle details have not been provided. 
c. Update required parking information. Three stalls are required per unit. 

9. Landscaping Plan 
33



a. Update required landscaping points so that they are just representative of Lot 1. 
Square footage used appears to be for the entire site. 

b. Staff recommends that two of the existing overstory “site trees” be relocated to the 
east side of Tract B, detention basin to meet the street tree requirements for that 
tract. 

 
Notice to adjoining property owners for this site plan was mailed on January 16, 2019. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
1/23/2019 

 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed Greenhill Village Townhomes II Site Plan is consistent with the development 
intent of this area. Staff recommends gathering any comments from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the public and then continuing the discussion of the proposed subdivision plat 
at the next Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on February 13, 2019. Approval of this 
site plan will be subject to the resolution of the technical comments listed above and the 
approval of the Greenhill Village Townhomes II Preliminary and Final Plats.  
 
Attachments: Greenhill Village Master Plan  
  Proposed Site Plan 
  Building Elevations 
  Proposed Landscaping Plan 
   

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT
FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT 
TRIM BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT 
SIDING - HARDIE 
PANEL CEDARMILL 
WITH SMOOTH 
BATTENS @ 16" O.C. 
OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

STANDING 
SEAM METAL 
ROOF
PREFINISHED 
ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED 
METAL FASIA 
WRAP

PREFINISHED 
METAL 
SOFFIT
FIBER 
CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 
DUAL COLOR 
VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - HARDIE PANEL CEDARMILL 
WITH SMOOTH BATTENS @ 16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

STANDING 
SEAM METAL 
ROOF
PREFINISHED 
METAL FASIA 
WRAP
PREFINISHED 
METAL 
SOFFIT
8" SQUARE 
FIBER CEMENT 
OR 
FIBERGLASS 
COLUMN 
WRAP WITH 
SQUARE BASE 
& CAPITAL

ALUMINUM 
GAURD RAIL - 
WESTBURY 
TUSCANY OR 
EQUAL
COMPOSITE 
DECKING & 
STAIR TREADS 
EQUAL TO 
TREXFIBER CEMENT SCEEN 

BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT RISERS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER 
CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL OVER 
WOOD POST

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

5 Unit Front Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

ALUMINUM DECK 
DESIGNED BY 
MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP
PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT
FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

STEEL GARAGE DOOR - 
PAINT TO MATCH SIDING 
COLOR

STANDING 
SEAM METAL 
ROOF

PREFINISHED 
ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED 
METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED 
METAL 
SOFFIT

DUAL COLOR 
VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE 
FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK 
LINER

FIBER 
CEMENT 
TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

STEEL 
GARAGE 
DOOR - 
PAINT TO 
MATCH 
SIDING 
COLOR

FIBER 
CEMENT 
SIDING - 
HARDIE 
PLANK 
CEDARMILL 5" 
EXPOSURE 
OR EQUAL 

ALUMINUM 
DECK 
DESIGNED 
BY 
MANUFACTU
RER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC 
INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

5 Unit Rear Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

50



W & D

Master Bed Room

Bath

Closet

Linen

Walk-In

Master Bath

Closet

Bed Room

Bed Room
9'-10" x 11'-1"

10'-6" x 9'-10"

11'-7" x 14'-10"

Do
wn

Upper Level
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

Proposed Condo Unit
0 2 3 4 5 FT

Ref

Micro
Oven

DW
Powder

Mech.

CoatsKitchen

Dining

Family

Do
wn

Entry

Up

Main Level
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

Low Wall

Up

Storage
Mud RoomOptional Den/ 

4th Bedroom

Garage

18' Door

Clo.

Lower Level
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

10
'-9

 7
/8

"

BEDROOM 1
CLOSET
MASTERSTAIRS

LIVING RM. ENTRY

GARAGE

4"

WINDOW AT END 
UNITS ONLY

WINDOW AT END 
UNITS ONLY

6
12

GARAGE FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BEARING
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34'-11 1'4"

9'-
8"

8'-
1 

3/
8"

Building Section
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

GARAGE FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BEARING
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PLANK 
CEDARMILL 5" EXPOSURE 
OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PLANK CEDARMILL 
5" EXPOSURE OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

6
12 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF

8" SQUARE FIBER CEMENT OR 
FIBERGLASS COLUMN WRAP 
WITH SQUARE BASE & 
CAPITAL

ALUMINUM GAURD RAIL - 
WESTBURY TUSCANY OR 
EQUAL

CONCRETE FOUNDATION WITH 
BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
OVER WOOD FRAMING

COMPOSITE DECKING & 
STAIR TREADS EQUAL 
TO TREX

3.63
12

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

3.63
12

GARAGE FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BEARING
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

6
12

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS
PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL WINDOWS

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF

8" SQUARE FIBER CEMENT 
OR FIBERGLASS COLUMN 
WRAP WITH SQUARE BASE 
& CAPITAL

ALUMINUM GAURD RAIL - 
WESTBURY TUSCANY OR 
EQUAL

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - HARDIE 
PANEL CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 16" O.C. 
OR EQUAL 

CONCRETE FOUNDATION WITH 
BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL OVER WOOD FRAMING

COMPOSITE 
DECKING & STAIR 
TREADS EQUAL 
TO TREX

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

3.63
12

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

3.63
12

Side Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

Side Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

51



GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 
STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

8" SQUARE FIBER 
CEMENT OR 
FIBERGLASS 
COLUMN WRAP WITH 
SQUARE BASE & 
CAPITAL

ALUMINUM GAURD 
RAIL - WESTBURY 
TUSCANY OR EQUAL

COMPOSITE DECKING 
& STAIR TREADS 
EQUAL TO TREX

FIBER CEMENT SCEEN 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT RISERS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
OVER WOOD POST

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

4 Unit Front Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP
PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT
FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

STEEL GARAGE DOOR - 
PAINT TO MATCH SIDING 
COLOR

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

STEEL GARAGE DOOR - 
PAINT TO MATCH SIDING 
COLOR

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PLANK 
CEDARMILL 5" EXPOSURE 
OR EQUAL 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

4 Unit Rear Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

52


	Top
	1. P&amp;Z minutes 1.9.19
	01-09-2019 PZ Minutes.docx

	2. 2119 College Street
	3. Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning at Southeast Corner of W. 12th Street and Union Road
	1 PZ staff Report on 12th and union rezoning 1-17-19.docx
	2 ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3 Zoning Plat.pdf
	4 Rezoning Development Concept 1-15-19.pdf
	5 R-P Zoning Developmental Procedures Agreement.docx

	4. 1-23-19 P and Z: Prelim Plat Greenhill Village Townhomes II
	1 PZ Staff report PP for Greenhill Village Townhomes II.docx
	2. Grenhill Villiage Master Plan.pdf
	3. Prel Plat Sheets 1 and 2 - 1-11-2019.pdf
	4. Drafted deed of dedication.doc

	5. 1-23-19 P&amp;Z: Grenhill Village Townhomes II Site Plan
	1 PZ Staff report Site Plan for Greenhill Village Townhomes II.docx
	2. Grenhill Villiage Master Plan.pdf
	3. Greenhill Village Townhomes Site Plan Submittal (Phase 1) 01-11-2019.pdf
	5. landscape plan.pdf
	4. Elevations Combined.pdf

	Bottom

